
HASTINGS PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

A meeting of the Hastings Planning Commission has been scheduled for Monday, March 
21, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. in the City Building, 220 North Hastings Avenue, City Council 
Chambers, Hastings, Nebraska. 
     
AGENDA:                             
 
1. Call to Order        
  
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4. Motion to adopt the current agenda for the Planning Commission Meeting  

(March 21, 2016) 
 
5. Notice that the Open Meetings Act is posted on the southeast wall of the City 
Council Chambers and that prior to this meeting a notice was placed in the Hastings 
Tribune on March 11, 2016 that notice was posted in three public places that each 
Planning Commission member received a copy of the proposed agenda and that an 
agenda for such meeting, kept continuously current, is available for public inspection and 
that said meeting is held in open session. 

 
6. Approval of Minutes (February 15, 2016) 

  
7. Special Order of Business  

 
8. Unfinished Business 

 
a. Continued Applications - None 
b. Tabled Applications - None 
c. Postponed Applications - None 
d. Unfinished Applications - None 

 
9. Public Hearings. 

 
a. 16-006.   Conditional Use Permit –  
Request from Timothy R. Grothen, applicant, for a Conditional Use Permit to locate 
a 45,560 square foot self-contained chicken breeding building on a lease tract of 
approximately seven acres to be determined on the Grothen Family Farm located 
in the Two-Mile Extraterritorial Zoning Jurisdiction of the City of Hastings in the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 20, Township 8 North, Range 9 West of the Sixth 
Principal Meridian, Adams County, Nebraska, property zoned AG District, 
Agricultural.  Physical location of the proposed building is on the north side of  
 



Planning Commission Agenda 
March 21, 2016 
Page Two 
 
East Lochland Road just east of the intersection of East Lochland Road and 
Wildflower Avenue. 

 
 
10. Subdivisions 
 

a. 16-007.  Final Subdivision Plat –  
Request from Dennis Engel of Engel Construction, applicant, for the approval of a 
twelve lot subdivision to be known as Cimarron Meadows 9th Addition located 
immediately north of Cimarron Meadows 5th Addition and Cimarron Meadows 8th 
Addition.  The property is described as a tract of land in the Northeast Quarter of 
Section 36, Township 8 North, Range10 West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Adams 
County, Nebraska, containing 6.23 acres of land, more or less.  Both Sides of 38th 
Street from the intersection of 38th Street and Lakepark Lane east approximately 
485 feet. 

 
11. Reports 

 
a. Committee Reports 
b. Chairman Comments  
c. Staff Reports 
 

 
Adjourn 



1 | P a g e  
 

HASTINGS PLANNING COMMISSION 
MINUTES 

February 15, 2016 
 
A meeting of the Hastings Planning Commission was called to order by Chairman Keith Napier, 
Monday, February 15, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. in the City Building, 220 North Hastings Avenue, City Council 
Chambers, Hastings, Nebraska. 
         
ROLL CALL                           STAFF 
       
Mr. Gaines          Mark Evans, Building Inspector 
Mr. Stutte          Linda Waldron, Fire Prevention Officer  
Mr. Hamelink          Dave Ptak, City Attorney 
Mr. Rosenberg          Teri Schelkopf, Recording Secretary   
Mr. Napier, Chairman        Joe Patterson, City Administrator &     
Mr. Kully, absent           Interim DS Director 
Mr. Johnson           Al Meyer, Hastings Utilities 
Mr. Hamburger, absent       Lance A. Lang, City Planner 
Mrs. Shutt 
 
It was stated that a quorum was present. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all present. 
 
The Chair asked for a motion to adopt the current agenda.  It was moved by Mr. Johnson, seconded by 
Mr. Hamelink to adopt the current agenda.    
 

VOTE – 7 ‐ YES – Stutte, Gaines, Hamelink, Rosenberg, Napier, Shutt, Johnson 
 
The Chair stated that the Open Meetings Act is posted on the southeast wall of the City Council Chambers 
and that prior to this meeting a notice was placed in the Hastings Tribune on February 8, 2016, that notice 
was  posted  in  three  public  places,  that  each  Planning  Commission member  received  a  copy  of  the 
proposed agenda and that an agenda for such meeting, kept continuously current, is available for public 
inspection and that said meeting is held in open session. 
 
The Chair asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the January 19, 2016, meeting.  It was moved 
by Mr. Hamelink, seconded by Mrs. Shutt to approve the minutes as circulated.  The Chair asked for any 
comments or changes to the minutes.    
 
There being none, the Chair asked for the vote.   
 

VOTE – 7 ‐ YES –  Stutte, Gaines, Hamelink, Rosenberg, Napier, Shutt, Johnson 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

The first order of special business was election of officers for 2016‐2017.  The Chair asked for 
nominations. 
 
The Chair (Mr. Napier) asked for nominations for Chairman.    
 
Mr. Rosenberg nominated Mr. Napier for Chairman.   Seconded by Mr. Stutte. 
 
The Chair asked for other nominations.   There being none, the Chair declared himself (Mr. Napier) to 
continue as Chairman by acclamation. 
 
The Chair (Mr. Napier) asked for nominations for Vice Chairman. 
 
Mr. Hamelink nominated Mr. Rosenberg for Vice Chairman.  Seconded by Mr. Stutte.   
 
There being no further nominations for Vice Chairman, the Chair declared Mr. Rosenberg Vice Chairman 
by acclamation. 
 
The Chair (Mr. Napier) asked for nominations for Member at Large. 
 
Mr. Gaines nominated Mr. Johnson for Member at Large.  There being no further nominations for 
Member at Large, the Chair declared Dave Johnson Member at Large by acclamation.   
 
The first item on the agenda was request number 16‐005.   Application from Luke Kliewer, applicant, for 
a Conditional Use Permit to operate a duplex dwelling for people in need, along with ancillary use as 
limited office space for the ministry, said facility to be known as “Miriam’s Hope,” on property zoned R‐
2, Mixed‐Density Neighborhood District, Lots 15 through 20 inclusive, Block 2, West Side Addition, 
located at 1818 West B Street, Hastings, Nebraska. 
 
The legal notice was read into the record. 
 
The Chair declared the public hearing open. 
 
The Chair asked for comments from Staff. 
 
Mr. Lang stated Mr. Kliewer asked the city for the opportunity to place a ministry to help families in 
need.   The Baptist Church had a second building on the site, zoned R‐2, and the idea would be to use 
the duplex for residences for two families.  In addition, the Kliewer’s would like to use the remaining 
space for classroom/meeting space to meet with families or do other activities that pertain to the 
mission and ministry.   This is specifically focused toward families with children that might otherwise 
have had to go to foster care.  It is a multi‐use building and staff decided the best way to allow this 
would be through a conditional use permit.   Shared parking is available on the lot.  Staff has not placed 
any conditions on this application.   If the Commission feels otherwise, conditions can be added.  This is 
in the interest of community betterment to help families in need, and a great opportunity for the 
applicant to move forward.   Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
Luke Kliewer, 1227 Briggs Ave., Hastings, NE.  He stated main floor would be used for 
classroom/meetings for counseling, and in conjunction with the State, use some of those classrooms to 
bring families in that need parenting classes to fulfill State requirements to get their children back.   



3 | P a g e  
 

 
The Chair asked if anyone else would like to speak to the application. 
 
There being no one, the Chair declared the public hearing closed. 
 
The Chair asked for a motion on application 16‐005. 
 
Moved by Mr. Rosenberg to approve 16‐005.  Seconded by Mr. Gaines. 
 
The Chair asked for further questions or discussion. 
 
There being none, the Chair asked for the vote. 
 

VOTE – 7 ‐ YES –  Stutte, Gaines, Hamelink, Rosenberg, Napier, Shutt, Johnson 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The next item on the agenda was request number 16‐004.   Request from the City of Hastings 
Engineering Department to approve the 2017‐2022 One and Six Year Street Improvement Plan.   
 
The legal notice was read into the record. 
 
The Chair declared the public hearing open. 
 
Dave Wacker, City Engineering, began by introducing Diane Parker, Executive Secretary for the 
Engineering Department and Steve Kostner, Street Superintendent.   

 
At this time, Dave Wacker, City Engineer, gave a power point presentation of the One & Six Year Street 
Improvement Plan (attached to original minutes).  
 
The Chair questioned the materials used for the new crosswalk.   
 
Mr. Wacker stated it is a thermoplastic that is applied with heat.  The company that makes it does 
markings in airfield applications.    It is reflective at night.  It appears the public is in acceptance with the 
application.  The City of Lincoln has used some in areas of downtown.  The schools would like to use it at 
crosswalks.   
 
The Chair asked if anyone else would like to speak to this application.  
 
There being none, the Chair asked for a motion to approve 16‐004. 
 
Moved by Mr. Rosenberg to approve 16‐004, seconded by Mrs. Shutt. 
 
The Chair asked for further questions or discussion. 
 
There being none, the Chair asked for the vote. 
 

VOTE – 7 ‐ YES –  Stutte, Gaines, Hamelink, Rosenberg, Napier, Shutt, Johnson 



4 | P a g e  
 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The Chair stated the ad hoc committee did meet Wednesday with Mr. Lang, Mr. Ptak and the County 
representatives.   A plan is going forward as the committee looks at the North 281 corridor as that begins 
to develop.   
 
Mr.  Lang  commented on  the NPZA  conference  in Kearney on March 9‐11.       Discussion was had on 
Commissioners attending.   
 
There being no other discussion, the Chair asked for a motion to adjourn. 
 
Moved by Mr. Hamelink, seconded by Mr. Gaines. 
 
The Chair asked for the vote. 
 

VOTE – 7 ‐ YES – Stutte, Gaines, Hamelink, Rosenberg, Napier, Shutt, Johnson 
 
Motion carried unanimously.   

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Chairman 































` 
            

           
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

            
            

FILE NO:  DS 16-006 
 
PREPARED BY: Lance A. Lang, City Planner 
 
PROJECT:  Conditional Use Permit 
 Self-Contained Poultry Breeder Barn 
 
LOCATION:   North side of East Lochland Road just east of the intersection 

of East Lochland Road and Wildflower Avenue. 

 
PRESENTER: Timothy Grothen, Applicant 
 
DATE:  March 21, 2016 
             
 
DISCUSSION: 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a self-contained 
building, approximately 68 feet wide by 670 feet in length or 45,560 square feet in floor 
area, to be used to raise chickens and to harvest the eggs from the chickens.  There is 
no specific “use type” in the zoning ordinance for this type of facility so staff had to make 
a determination of the best “fit” within the context of the ordinance, something along the 
order of “animal confinement.”  “Feed Lots”, “Aquaculture”, and “Kennels” are animal 
confinement use types that are allowed as conditional uses in AG, Agricultural zoning 
districts. This appears to be the most comparable method to match in determining zoning 
protocol for a poultry breeder barn.  Therefore, Staff has determined that a CUP is 
required for this facility in AG zoning. 
 
A world-wide poultry genetics company, Hendrix Genetics, is developing 
breeder/hatchery operations in partnership with local ag producers in various parts of the 
United States and they have identified the Grand Island-Hastings region as a target area.  
A large hatchery facility will be constructed in Grand Island at West Schimmer Avenue 
and Blaine Road which will require eight satellite sites for adult breeding populations to 
supply the eggs within a 100-mile radius.  If a CUP can be secured for this site, the 
applicant will enter into a seven-year contract whereby the corporation will construct the 
facilities on the applicant’s property on a lease parcel and the applicant will be responsible 



for running the production facility.  After the initial lease expires, a new lease may be 
negotiated. 
 
The applicant has provided a detailed narrative description and overview of the project 
along with photographs depicting the nature of the proposed facility (attached as part of 
the packet).  Staff has summarized key components of the operation and facility as 
follows: 
 

a)  The exact site for the proposed building has not been determined.  According to 
the applicant, it will be located on the Grothen Family Farm in the Southwest 
Quarter of Section 20, Township 8 North, Range 9 West of the 6th Principal 
Meridian on a lease parcel of about seven acres.  The two prime sites are both on 
the north side of East Lochland Road, one just east of the family homestead and 
the other at the eastern corner of the property just north of the intersection of 
Columbine Street and East Lochland Road. (See Exhibit ‘A’) The preferred site is 
adjacent to the homestead.  There is an existing field access from East Lochland 
at this location. 

b) An existing windbreak of trees approximately 100 feet in depth runs the length of 
this property along the north side of East Lochland Road which provides a natural 
visual screen for anything built behind (north) of it. 

c) As previously mentioned, the building is long and narrow at approximately 68 feet 
by 670 feet.  The building is all metal construction, two stories high with fifteen-foot 
sidewalls.  The lower level is reserved for manure collection and stockpiling until it 
is hauled off. 

d) The building will contain 40,000 layer hens plus 4,000 roosters raised on a 65-
week cycle.  At the end of the 65 weeks all birds are euthanized, the facility is 
sanitized, and stockpiled manure is hauled away as the facility is readied for the 
next cycle of birds. 

e) The eggs are considered “Free Range” since the birds are not individually or small-
group penned. One square foot of floor space is allocated to each bird and they 
can move around the inside at will (see photo). 

f) The mortality rate is about 4% per year (1660-1750 birds) which are composted or 
incinerated. 

g) Truck traffic -Once per year new birds are delivered, every three days eggs are 
collected and trucked off-site, every 10 days feed is delivered. 

h) The building is bio-engineered and computer controlled for air filtration, circulation, 
etc.  The building is never “opened up” to the outside, even during nice weather. 

i) Odor management and fly management programs are part of the operating 
procedures although the company admits, at times, depending on the wind 
direction, the building produces odors and at times the roosters can be heard even 
though everything is enclosed. 

j) The facility requires two sources of water, either two wells or one well and one tank 
capable of providing 2,500 gallons of water daily. 

k) Since the contract is based on a seven year initial lease, staff recommends that 
the CUP be renewable coinciding with the terms of the lease so that the validity of 
the City approval is tied to the lease.  However, any CUP can be revoked at any 
time if sufficient cause is determined by the City Council to warrant its revocation. 
 



City staff has met with the applicant and representatives from Hendrix Genetics to 
discuss this project. The information provided from the development team is very 
thorough and is well represented in this staff report and attachments.  
 
Staff has discussed this proposal internally and will not support the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit for this operation at the proposed location.  The proximity of this 
property to Highway 281 on the developing fringe of the City has the potential to cause 
incompatibilities in future land use, truck traffic concerns, and environmental nuisances 
as the area continues to develop.  (See Exhibit ’C’)  Although this property, and much of 
the property surrounding it, is currently zoned AG, Agricultural, this area is prime for 
future development of moderate to upscale housing at urban and suburban densities.  
(See Exhibit ‘E’)  The neighborhood is currently in a state of transition that exhibits a mix 
of uses and will continue to see incremental transition of agricultural lands to higher uses. 
The intervening property between Highway 281 and this area will develop as a mix of 
uses including light industrial, commercial retail, commercial office and medium and high 
density urban residential.   
 
In consideration of existing land uses there is a residential subdivision, Thom 
Subdivision,  just on the south side of East Lochland Road from this site featuring 22 
established single-family homes. (see Exhibit ‘B’) The property immediately east of these 
homes has been rezoned and preliminary platted for 27 additional future residential lots. 
City staff has met with other property owners in the area that are actively pursuing master 
planning of large parcels of property retaining the services of professional planning and 
engineering consulting firms.   One only has to look west across Highway 281 to the 
West Lochland area to imagine the potential of what this east side will become and staff 
does not feel that the poultry facility is a compatible use with present and future growth. 
(see Exhibit ‘B’)  The Future Land Use Map as show on Exhibit ‘D’ depicts the site as 
“Rural Residential” and most of the surrounding area similarly. It is anticipated that the 
land use map will become further refined during the next update process to reflect the 
continued evolution of the mix of uses that are contemplated for the area.  Staff feels that 
the likelihood of nuisance problems is high for a facility such as this in a developing 
residential area.  Odors, noise, and truck traffic concerns should be apparent. 
 
As the world’s population continues to grow agriculture remains an integral and 
necessary component of a balanced economy.  The technology of the proposed facility 
is impressive and the Grand Island-Hastings region may well be considered an 
appropriate area for such facilities.  In this case, however, staff feels that allowing this 
use in this particular area of the community would not be a good land use decision for 
the long-term interest of the community at large.  Perhaps a location zoned AG further 
into the two-mile ETJ or further out into Adams County would be appropriate if adequate 
separation from surrounding uses and convenient truck access could be achieved.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends denial of the Conditional Use Permit for a poultry breeder barn at this 
location as presented. 
 



























































 
            

           
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

            
            

FILE NO:  DS 16-007 
 
PREPARED BY: Lance A. Lang, City Planner 
 
PROJECT:  Final Subdivision Plat 
  Cimarron Meadows 9th Addition 
 
LOCATION:   Both Sides of 38th Street from the intersection of 38th Street and 

Lakepark Lane east approximately 485 feet. 
 
 
PRESENTER: Tom Krueger, JEO Consulting Group Inc. 
 
DATE:  March 21, 2016 
             
 
DISCUSSION: 
The applicant is requesting approval of a twelve-lot residential subdivision, the next phase of the 
Cimarron Meadows neighborhood, to be known as Cimarron Meadows 9th Addition.  These lots 
are proposed on both the north and south sides of 38th Street from the intersection of 38th Street 
and Lakepark Lane east approximately 485 feet.  The street right-of-way then continues as part 
of the Final Plat curving south, becoming known as Fisherman Lane and intersecting with the 
existing paving on Fisherman Lane approximately 140 feet north of 35th Street.   By including the 
entire length of the right-of-way for 38th Street/Fisherman Lane as part of the Final Plat, through 
access and adequate circulation through the neighborhood is assured.  The street providing 
access to each of the twelve lots in Cimarron Meadows 9th will be paved at this time. The 
remainder of the platted street extending south will not be paved for the entire length south until 
the adjacent lots are platted.     
 
The proposed lots are 95 to 110 or so feet wide with lot depths of 130 to 150 feet.  The design of 
the subdivision is in conformance with the overall Preliminary Plat for Cimarron Meadows.  The 
rough grading of these lots is complete.  Municipal water, sanitary sewer, and paving will be 
developer constructed.  
 
Cimarron Meadows 9th Addition will become part of the corporate boundary of the City as it is 
being platted as “An Addition to the City of Hastings.”                                                                                             
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat for Cimarron Meadows 9th Addition.   





Cimmaron Meadows 9th(approximate)

42ND ST W

33RD ST W

BA
LT

IM
OR

E A
VE

 N

OS
BO

RN
E D

R 
W

WE
ND

EL
L D

R

OS
BO

RN
E D

R 
E

39TH ST E

TO
M 

OS
BO

RN
E 

EX
PR

ES
SW

AY

LA
KE

PA
RK

 LN

YO
ST

 AV
E

42ND ST E

35TH ST W

38TH ST W

FIS
HE

RM
AN

 LN
LEISURE LN

CIMARRON PLZ

31ST ST W
DOCKSIDE CV

LAKEVIEW TER

42ND ST E

OS
BO

RN
E D

R 
E

City of Hastings
Legend

Parcels
Subdivisions
Legal_Lots

Limits
TwoMile

This map is for illustration only.

Cimarron Meadows 9th - Vicinity Map µ
EXHIBIT 'A'



CIMARRON MEADOWS 9TH ADDITION
(Approximate boundary)

35TH ST W

WE
ND

EL
L D

R

LA
KE

PA
RK

 LN LA
RE

DO
 LN

38TH ST W

CI
MA

RR
ON

 PL
Z

LAKEVIEW TER

FIS
HE

RM
AN

 LN

SUNSET CIR

1
1

5
 

2
 

1
 

1
12

1

3
 

1

6
 

2

1

1
4

3
2

4
2

1
 

3
4

1
3

9
1
8
1
7
1

2
 

6
1
5
1
4
1
3
1
2
1
1
1

2
1

3
11

1
1
 

1
 

2
1

3
1

1
2

2
 

1
2

2
 

6
2

3
 

1
2

5
2

2
2

7
2

9
2

8
2

5
2
6
2

2
 

1
 

6
5

5
5

4
5

4
2

10
2

9
4

8
4

7
4

6
4

5
4

1
4

4
4

3
4

2
4

11
5

22
4

10
5

21
4

20
4

19
4

18
4

17
4

16
4

15
4

11
4

10
4

3

1
1

2
2

4
2

3
2

2
3

3
4

4
4

2
4

901

721

716720

618

713

712

702710

618 614

715

714724

702
706722 718 714

3705

3511

3701

3609
3611

3605
3602

3507

3610

1003

3505

3509

35043504

3508

3801

3607

1003

3509

1012

1008
1004

3403

3601

3605

3602

3606

3714

3609

3601

3307

3803

City of Hastings
Legend

Parcels
Subdivisions
Legal_Lots

Limits
TwoMile

This map is for illustration only.

Cimarron Meadows 9th Addition - Aerial Photo
µ

EXHIBIT 'B'



Area included in Final Plat- Cimarron 9th Addition6.23 acres +/-Zoned R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

PD

35TH ST W

WE
ND

EL
L D

R

LA
RE

DO
 LN

LA
KE

PA
RK

 LN

38TH ST W

CI
MA

RR
ON

 PL
Z

LAKEVIEW TER

FIS
HE

RM
AN

 LN

SUNSET CIR

City Limits
subdivision
A: Agricultural district
R-1: Urban single family
R-2: Two-family

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

R-3G: Garden apartment

R-3: Multiple-family
R-1A: Single family large lot
R-1S:Single family suburban
R-5: Urban single family undersized lot
CMP: Campus institutional
CZ: Clear zone

C-1: Local business 
C-2: Central business
C-3: Commercial business
C-0: Commercial office
I-1: Light industrial
I-2: Heavy industrial

City of Hastings Zoning
Cimarron Meadows 9th Addition - Existing Zoning

µ
EXHIBIT 'C'


	03-21-16
	2-15-16
	One and Six
	March PC-Grothen
	PC-2016-Mar21-CUP-GrothenChickenBldg-DS#16-006
	MX-4111N_20160316_124034
	MX-4111N_20160316_091402

	March PC-Cimarron
	PC-2016-CimarronMeadows9th-FP-DS#16-007
	Cimarron Meadows 9th - Final Plat
	Cimarron Meadows 9th -Vicinity Map
	Cimarron Meadows 9th - Aerial
	zoningCimarron Meadows 9th - Zoning


